NATIONAL LLEWELLIN GUN DOG CLUB BYLAWS

ARTICLE I - NAME

The name of this organization shall be the National Llewellin Gun Dog Club.

ARTICLE II – OBJECT

- a. To sponsor, promote and conduct Llewellin Setter field trials.
- b. To promote safety, fellowship and good sportsmanship among sportsmen and sportswomen.
- c. To cooperate with other organizations that shares these objectives.

ARTICLE III - VOTING

Each member of the Club shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to the vote of the members. A member may vote in person or by written proxy executed by the member. A valid written proxy must conform exactly to the language of the issue presented to the membership for vote. No proxy shall be valid six (6) months from its date of execution unless otherwise provided in the proxy. Members may be allowed to vote by electronic means.

Membership at large may at any time request for review changes to the running rules. All proposed amendments to the running rules shall be submitted to the Executive Committee and Trial Chairperson no less than ninety (90) days before the Club's annual field trial and meeting. Running rule changes and amendments will be provided in a notification given no less than sixty (60) days prior to the Club's annual primary field trial and meeting by the means of a special mailing, notice in the Club's newsletter, or both mail and electronic means. Both arguments for and against will be included in the notification.

ARTICLE IV – DUES

Member dues and any initiation fees or special assessments shall be determined annually by the Executive Committee, payable prior to the annual meeting. Members in arrears will not be eligible to vote, hold office or be entitled to any privileges or benefits of the Club.

ARTICLE V – MEETINGS

Annual Meetings: The annual meeting of the club shall be held on the Saturday evening concurrent to the Club' s annual primary field trial each year or at such time as determined by the Executive Committee with reasonable notice given to the membership.

Special Meetings: Special meetings may be called at any time by the president, the Executive Committee, or petitioned for by a majority of the active membership. One third of the active membership entitled to vote shall, in person or by proxy, constitute a quorum at any meeting.

ARTICLE VI- OFFICERS

Officers of the Club shall be a president, no less than one or more than three vicepresidents, a secretary and a treasurer. The office of secretary and treasurer may be combined. At no time shall there be less than three nor more than five officers, who acting together, shall constitute the Executive Committee, said committee being vested with the general supervision and management of the Club. Three members of the committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any and all business. Such offices shall be filled at an election held at the annual meeting of the Club by voting conducted either in person or by proxy. Officers shall hold office until their successors have been duly elected and qualified.

The Executive Committee reserves the option to call for a membership vote on matters concerning Club business. Such voting may be conducted either in person or by proxy. In the event a membership vote is called, notification will be given no less than sixty (60) days prior to the Club's annual primary field trial and meeting or any special meeting called by the Executive Committee.

Article VII - Termination of Membership

The Executive Committee shall have the power, by a two-thirds vote of the whole committee, to expel any member from the Club. Such expelled member shall be given written notice of such expulsion by the secretary of the Club and may, within fifteen days, petition the secretary for a hearing of the committee, at which time the member may be reinstated by a majority vote of the committee, the expulsion being deemed final this not being achieved. Any member who fails to pay regular dues by the deadline set by the committee will be presumed to have resigned their membership and may reapply at any time in the same manner as a new member. Active members may resign at any time by notifying, in writing, the Club' s secretary. The interest of any member in the rights and property of the Club ceases with the termination of their membership.

Article VIII - Amendments to the Bylaws

Any proposed amendments to these bylaws shall be submitted to the membership sixty (60) days prior to the Annual or Special Meeting. The proposed amendments shall first be submitted to the Executive Committee ninety (90) days prior to the annual meeting for review prior to distribution to the membership. Any recommended changes by the Executive Commission shall be approved by the author prior to distribution to the membership shall be by First Class United States Mail or

by email to the member. A two thirds vote of the members present or voting by valid proxy will be necessary to pass or reject the amendment.

ARTICLE IX – ELECTIONS

Elections shall be held at the Annual Meeting. Nominations should be made sixty (60) days prior to the Annual Meeting to allow candidates to provide a resume to each member. The notification shall be done by means of a special mailing, by notice in the Club newsletter or by both electronic means and mail. Nominations will be allowed from the floor of the Annual Meeting.